


 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

August 22, 2018 

 
Page 2 of 2  

 

5. COUN CIL, STAFF AND  OTHER REPORTS 
The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at committee 

meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the Council prefers formal 

action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council meeting agenda. 

5A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items - All Councilmembers 

5B. City Operations Update ï City staff 

5C. Additional Reports ï Agency partners 
 

6. COUN CIL BUSIN ESS 

6A. Lease Agreement for City Owned Property at 99 Railroad Street, Suite 4. 

 Staff Presentation:  Wes Heathcock, City Manager  

 Recommendation:  Discuss staff recommendation and consider authorizing a 1-year lease 

agreement with Rainbow Music at a reduced rental rate as presen ted .  
 

7. GOOD OF THE ORDER - INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
Informal observation reports and inquiries regarding the business of the City may be presented by Council members under this agenda item 

or requests for placement of items of interest on a future agenda.  No action will be taken. 
 

8. AD JOURN MEN T 
 

 

I, Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk for the City of Colfax declare that this agenda was posted   

at Colfax City Hall and the Colfax Post Office. The agenda is also available on the City website at www.Colfax-ca.gov.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted  prior to action being initiated  in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council a ction 

in court, you may be limited  to raising only those issues you or someone else raised  at a public hearing described  in this 

notice/ agenda, or in written correspondence delivered  to the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said  public he aring. 

 

http://www.colfax-ca.gov/


City of Colfax 1 
City Council Minutes August 8, 2018 
 

6A.      City of Colfax 
    City Council Minutes 
    Regular Meeting of Wednesday, August 8, 2018 
    City Hall Council Chambers 
    33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 
 

 

 

1 CLOSED SESSION 
1A. Call Closed Session to Order 

Mayor Stockwin called the meeting to order at 6:28PM 
1B. Roll Call 

Council members present:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
1C. Public Comment on Closed Session Items 

There was no public comment 
1D. Closed Session 

Conference With Legal Counsel - Anticipated  Litigation. Initiation of litigation pursuant to 

Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4): One potential case.  
 

Conference With Legal Counsel - Anticipated  Litigation. Significant exposure to litigation 

pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2): One potential case. 

 

Closed session ended at 6:57PM. 
 

2 OPEN SESSION 
2A. Call to Order 

Mayor Stockwin called the meeting to order at 7:03PM. 
2B. Report from Closed Session 

City Attorney Cabral noted there was nothing to report from Closed Session. 
2C. Pledge of Allegiance 

Frank Klein, Colfax Area Chamber of Commerce President, led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
2D. Roll Call 

Council members present:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
2E. Approval of Agenda Order 
On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, the City Council 
approved the agenda order. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

3 PRESENTATION 
3A. Placer County Speakers Bureau 

Katherine Ferry, Consumer Affairs Supervisor Placer County Health Services 
Harold Chastain, Placer County Speaker’s Bureau. 

City Manager Heathcock introduced Katherine Ferry from the Placer County Health Services 
Department.  Ms. Ferry explained the purpose of the Speaker’s Bureau is to combat the stigma 
often associated with mental health issues.  She introduced Harold Chastain who is a health 
coach for County programs as well as a seasoned speaker for the Bureau. 
Mr. Chastain told the story of his experience with depression and how “self-medication” with 
marijuana contributed to his spiral into psychosis and other mental illness.  He recounted his 
journey to recovery with the assistance of Placer County programs.  He explained how he is able 
to move forward through cycles of depression and psychosis with the help of Placer County staff. 

ITEM  3A
1 of 6







City of Colfax 4 
City Council Minutes August 8, 2018 
 

 Ms. McCleary reminded everyone the final Artwalk/Car Shows will be August 17 
and September 15, 2018.  Since the Car Show has joined the Artwalk the evenings 
are becoming more popular and more artists are joining in to display their work. 

 Ms. McCleary suggested Council volunteer to help with the ceremony for veterans 
scheduled for September 8, 2018 from 11:00AM-1:00PM. 
 

7 COUNCIL BUSINESS 
7A. South Auburn St. and I-80 Roundabout Project Update and Omni-Means Contract 

Amendment. 
Staff Presentation:  Dane Schilling, City Engineer; Paul Anderson, Associate Engineer  
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 53-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute 
Amendment № 2 to the Consultant Services Agreement between the City of Colfax and 
Omni-Means, a GHD Company, authorizing the City Manager to execute future 
amendments with costs not to exceed the Design Budget for the S. Auburn St. and I-80 
Roundabout Project, and acknowledging new ownership of the design engineering firm. 
 

City Manager Heathcock introduced Travis Williams from Coastland Engineering and Heather 
Anderson from Omni-Means (which is now known as GHD). 
 

Mr. Williams explained staff is requesting additional funding for the Roundabout Design.  
Caltrans has required additional environmental studies, extra right of way documentation and 
new bid documents.  Also, moving the PCWA waterline will require extra design.  The total cost 
of additional services is $100,000 which will amend the contract with Omni-Means. 
 

Ms. Anderson explained some of the details of the added expenses. 
 

Council asked if staff can offer assurance that the scope of the project will not continue to 
increase and how this affects the timeline for the project.   
 

When the discussion was opened to the public, Mr. Joe Fatula, local business owner, asked about 
specific environmental triggers which would require remediation. 
 

Ms. Anderson assured the public and Council that Omni-Means has documented the additions to 
the design phase will indemnify the City from further scope on the project and the preliminary 
environmental/archeological studies indicated there will be no issues to move forward with 
construction which will now go to bid early next year. 
 

City Manager Heathcock informed Council the Placer County Transportation Planning Agency 
(PTCPA) may have a funding opportunity to offset the extra costs. 

 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, and a second by Councilmember Douglass, Council 
approved Resolution 53-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute Amendment № 2 to the 
Consultant Services Agreement between the City of Colfax and Omni-Means, a GHD Company, 
authorizing the City Manager to execute future amendments with costs not to exceed the Design 
Budget for the S. Auburn St. and I-80 Roundabout Project, and acknowledging new ownership of 
the design engineering firm. 
Ayes:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM  3A



City of Colfax 5 
City Council Minutes August 8, 2018 
 

7B. Commercial Cannabis Retailer Permit Application Progress 
Staff Presentation:  Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
Recommendation:  Receive update, discuss and direct staff as appropriate. 
 

City Manager Heathcock explained City staff has begun processing applications for Commercial 
Cannabis Retail permits from four companies.  The applications are under review by HdL, which 
Council has hired to evaluate the applications.  The Ordinance adopted early this year allows 
Council to issue up to two medical and two adult-use permits, but does not require Council to 
issue any permits.  Staff is asking if Council would like to proceed with the process of issuing the 
permits, defer the application process for another date or stop the process all together. 
This was listed in the staff report as: 

a. Continue the application process to Phase II 
b. Defer the process to a future date, and/or 
c. Stop the application process until further notice. 

 

Mayor Stockwin opened the discussion to Council. 
Mayor Stockwin sees no reason to stop cannabis permitting and would like to proceed with the 
application process. (Option a.) 
Councilmember Harvey recommends stopping the process now. (Option c.) 
Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza also would like to stop the application process now as she has heard 
from many in the community they do not want cannabis businesses in Colfax. (Option c.) 
Councilmember Douglass stated there are four openings on Council so it might be better for the 
next Council to decide.  He prefers to defer the process until later. (Option b.) 
Mayor Stockwin stated stopping the process would require refunds of the applicant’s permit fees 
and an $11,400 payment HdL.  He asked from which fund the moneys would be taken to pay HdL 
since the intent of the contract was to have the applicants pay Hdl through their application fees. 
 

Several members of the public gave their opinions to stop the application process, continue the 
process or to postpone.   
 

  Options:  
a.  Continue the application process 
b.  Defer the process 
c.  Stop the application process 

Annie Aubrey Cannabis permit 
applicant 

a.  Continue – her company has invested over 
thirty thousand dollars to apply 

Sharon Conners Area resident c.  Stop – Colfax is too small for so many 
dispensaries 

Patricia Schooley Colfax resident c.  Stop – other businesses are being evicted 
to allow cannabis sales 

Sherri Peterson Colfax business owner a.  Continue – it is unfair to change course at 
this point 

Rich Miller Cannabis permit 
applicant 

a.  Continue – Council is reacting to the illegal 
dispensary claiming religious status 

Janice LeRoux  Area resident Point of order - cannot decide on funding 
tonight as that is not the issue on the agenda 

Rocky Warren Area resident c.  Stop adult use, continue medical 
Rita Dolphin Colfax resident c.  Stop – Too much time spent so far, perhaps 

separate medical and adult use 
  Options:  

ITEM  3A
5 of 6



City of Colfax 6 
City Council Minutes August 8, 2018 
 

a.  Continue the application process 
b.  Defer the process 
c.  Stop the application process 

Jim Dion Cannabis permit 
applicant 

a.  Continue – but only allow one medical 
dispensary 

Joe Fatula Colfax business owner a.  Continue – but only allow one medical 
dispensary – more would impact town’s 
character 

Sherri Peterson Colfax business owner Reiterated injustice of stopping or in allowing 
a monopoly 

Dylan Williams Area resident c.  Stop –Too easy for youth to purchase 
Rich Miller Cannabis permit 

applicant 
He commented to Mr. Dion that he had toured 
the facility and it looks great but doesn’t offer 
educational materials.  He cautioned Council 
not to create a monopoly 

Tyler Schooley Colfax resident a.  Continue - but only for the Dion family 

Mayor Stockwin brought the discussion back to Council. 
   

He reminded Council 64% of people did approve of a cannabis dispensary in the last election.  He 
would prefer to continue the process to Phase II of vetting the applications.  Council can always 
choose not to issue any permits. 
Councilmember Douglass would like to defer the process until after the election 
Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza wants to stop the process. 
Councilmember Harvey asked to stop the process. 
 

City Attorney Cabral stated with three Councilmembers deferring or stopping, Staff has direction 
to defer or stop the process. 
Mayor Stockwin stated that Council is kicking the can down the road, but the majority has agreed 
to stop the process until Council brings the issue to the agenda at a future date. 
 

8 GOOD OF THE ORDER – INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
Councilmember Harvey stated he has served on Council for 8 years.  In that time expenses for 
Council members have increased, but the $100/month stipend has not.  He suggested Council 
consider a $50/month increase in their stipend to better cover costs associated with serving the 
community.  
 

9 ADJOURNMENT 
 

As there was no further business, Mayor Stockwin adjourned the meeting at 8:55PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 22nd day of August, 2018 
 

ITEM  3A
6 of 6



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE  AUGUST 22, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: August 13, 2018 
SUBJECT: City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: July 2018 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and file the Cash Summary Report: July 2018. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
These monthly financial reports include General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax 
Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis 
and are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports, and bank statements.  
Detailed budget comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and also as part of the proposed budget 
process each year. 
 

The purpose of the reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for Council and the public of the 
financial transactions of the City. 
 

The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in  
July 2018.  Monthly highlights include: 

 Negative cash fund balances in Special Revenues and Capital project funds are due to timing of 
funding allocations and reimbursements.   

o Fund 355 and 385 – Initial project costs to be reimbursed with project funding and transfers.  
Second reimbursement request for Project 385 – Roundabout is being processed. 

 Major Expenses for July included: 
o Annual deposit for Liability insurance and quarterly workers compensation insurance – total 

$98,000 

 Major Revenues for July included: 
o Monthly estimated sales tax revenues $85,000. 
o Business License Renewals for FY2019 - $6,000. 
o Escrow deposits received from Developers - $222,000. 
o Insurance deposit received for Pond 3 Storm Damage - $300,000 – Included in Fund 560, but 

tracked separately from operating costs. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs 

a. Cash Analysis – Balance 
b. Expenses by Month 
c. Revenues by Month 

2. Cash Activity Reports  
a. Cash Summary 
b. Cash Transactions Report – by individual fund 
c. Check Register Report  - Accounts Payable 
d. Daily Cash Summary Report (Cash Receipts) 

ITEM  3B
1 of 12



ITEM  3B
2 of 12





ITEM  3B
4 of 12



ITEM  3B
5 of 12



ITEM  3B
6 of 12



ITEM  3B







ITEM  3B
10 of 12



ITEM  3B
11 of 12



ITEM  3B





ITEM  3C





ITEM  3C



ITEM  3C
5 of 9





ITEM  3C
7 of 9



ITEM  3C
8 of 9



ITEM  3C



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE AUGUST 22, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

DATE: August 15, 2018 
SUBJECT: Lease Agreement for City-Owned Property at 99 Railroad Street, Suite 4 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUNDS:  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss staff recommendation and consider approval of a 1-year lease 
agreement with Rainbow Music at the reduced rental rate as presented.  

Discussion and Summary 
In February 2018, Council authorized the execution of a professional contract with Foothills Properties for 
the administration of the City rental properties.  Under this contract, Foothills Properties has effectively 
leased the Depot Building, Suite #1 to Brian Machado as SmartWay Auto.  SmartWay Auto is paying the 
market rate of $1/ft2, equaling $250/month for a 3-year term. 
 
Foothills Properties, in conjunction with City staff, has been working with the current tenant of 99 Railroad 
Street, Suite 4 - Rainbow Music (Rob & Christine Bonner) - to negotiate a reasonable lease agreement.  The 
Bonner’s previous lease expired in 2014 and has rented the property on a month to month basis since the 
conclusion of the lease agreement.  The previous terms were $480 monthly rent with the ability to reduce 
the monthly rent by up to $330 if improvements and/or maintenance projects were made to the property. 
Historically, the Bonner’s have paid $150/month with the rent reduction justification submitted each 
month.  Using the current fair market rate $1/ft2, the railcar rent would be $650/month (65’x10’x$1). 
 
Staff is proposing a lease agreement that specifies the Bonner’s rent is $350/month with the ability to 
reduce the rent by $150/month with a defined activity to qualify as credit for the rent reduction.  The 
tenant is agreeing to install 12 custom-made replacement windows in the railcar as the qualifying rent 
reduction activity during the term of the new lease.  The lease agreement is for 1-year starting September 
1, 2018 and will default to a month to month tenancy with no rent reduction after September 30, 2019. 
 
Staff and Foothills Property believe the rent is reasonable given the Bonner’s history of maintaining the 
property and the uniqueness of the railcar which could reduce the potential for acquiring other tenants.  At 
the conclusion of the lease agreement, staff will reevaluate the community benefit of renting the railcar to 
the current tenant or investigate an alternative use keeping in mind the potential development of the 
Colfax Hotel.  Because the recommended lease agreement amount is less than market value, staff is looking 
for concurrence from Council to proceed with the lease agreement.    

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Lease Agreement 

1 of 8



2 of 8














	00A 180822 Agenda
	03A 180808 Minutes
	03B Cash Summary July 2018
	2019-01 Staff Report Cash Summary Jul 2018
	Cash Summary Data July 2018

	03C DGS Surplus
	SR DGS Surplus Property Program
	180808 Resolution and Back up for DGS

	06A 99 Railroad Suit 4 Rainbow Music Lease
	180822 SR Lease 99 Railroad Street Suite 4
	180822 Lease Agreement 99 Railroad Suite 4




